
~. 

mesa·az 


OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

COUNCIL MINUTES 

October 4, 2010 

The City Council of the City of Mesa met in a Regular Council Meeting in the Council Chambers, 57 East 
1st Street, on October 4,2010 at 5:47 p.m. 

COUNCIL PRESENT COUNCIL ABSENT OFFICERS PRESENT 

Mayor Scott Smith None Christopher Brady 
Alex Finter Debbie Spinner 
Dina Higgins Linda Crocker 
Kyle Jones 
Dennis Kavanaugh 
Dave Richins 
Scott Somers 

(Councilwoman Higgins participated in the meeting via telephonic equipment.) 


Invocation by Executive Pastor Tom Moffatt, City of Grace. 


Pledge of Allegiance was led by Scout Brady Haws, Troop #766. 


Mayor's Welcome. 


Mayor Smith welcomed everyone to the meeting. A videotaped presentation was aired that outlined 

meeting procedures and provided attendees with instructions relative to addressing the Council. 


Awards, Recognitions and Announcements: None 


1. 	 Take action on all consent agenda items. 

It was moved by Councilmember Somers, seconded by Vice Mayor Jones, that the consent 
agenda items be approved. 

Carried unanimously. 

Items on the Consent Agenda 

*2. 	 Approval of minutes of previous meetings as written. 

Minutes of the September 27, 2010 Council meetings. 



Regular Council Meeting 
October 4, 2010 
Page 2 

3. 	 Take action on the following liquor license applications: 

*3a. 	 Christ the King Catholic Church 

This is a one-day religious event to be held on Saturday, October 16, 2010 from 4:00 
p.m. to 10:00 p.m. at 1551 E. Dana Avenue. (District 4) 

*3b. 	 Choir Boys Social Club 

This is a one-day charitable event to be held on Saturday, October 16, 2010 from 11:00 
a.m. to 10:00 p.m. at 922 S. Country Club Drive. (District 3) 

*3c. 	 Arizona Golf Resort 

Person to Person Transfer of a Bar License for Arizona Golf Resort, 425 S. Power Road, 
AGGR Associates LLC - Nicholas Carl Guttilla, Agent. This location presently has a Bar 
License held under Mereco Inc. (District 6) 

4. 	 Take action on the following contracts: 

*4a. 	 Short-Term Disability Benefit for City Employees. 

The Employee Benefits Advisory Committee recommends a contract with Mutual of 
Omaha for a short-term disability benefit with options for 14, 29 and 44-day elimination 
periods. Premiums will be paid by employees who enroll in the program; the City will not 
incur any premium expense. 

*4b. 	 Purchase of a Biochemical Oxygen Demand Analyzer for the Water Resources 
Department (Citywide). 

The Purchasing Division recommends awarding the contract to the lowest, responsive 
and responsible bidder, Skalar, Inc. at $26,628.68, including applicable use tax. 

*4c. 	 Term Contract for Utility Bill Envelopes for the Business Services Department (Citywide). 

The Purchasing Division recommends award the contract to the two (2) lowest, 
responsive and responsible bidders, Tension Envelope at $31,426.56 annually, and 
Cenveo at $20,037.60 annually, including applicable use taxes, based on estimated 
requirements. The combined total award is $51,464.16. 

*4d. 	 Purchase of an integrated software and hardware solution to replace the City's financial, 
budget, procurement, human resources and payroll systems. 

The Purchasing Division recommends awarding the contract to CGI Technologies and 
Solutions, Inc. for $14,847.804; various hardware and associated software from State 
contract vendors totaling $568,674.68 including all taxes; and 15% project contingencies 
at $2,312,472, for a total award of $17,728,950.68. 

http:17,728,950.68
http:568,674.68
http:51,464.16
http:20,037.60
http:31,426.56
http:26,628.68


Regular Council Meeting 
October 4,2010 
Page 3 

*4e. 	 Stormwater Sampling Stations (Districts 1, 2, 3, 5, 6). 

City Project 07-036-001. The City maintains five stormwater sampling stations at various 
locations. This project will remove four of the existing sampling stations, upgrade one 
existing station, and construct four new sampling stations as required by the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality. 

Recommend award to the low bidder, A J Roberts Industrial, Inc., in the amount of 
$211,236.14, plus an additional $21,123.61 (10% allowance for change orders) for a total 
award of $232,359.75. Funding is available in the FY 10/11 Environmental and 
Sustainability Capital Program. 

5. 	 Introduction of the following ordinances and setting October 18, 2010, as the date of the public 
hearing on these ordinances: 

*5a. 	 Z10-23 (District 1) 1017 North Dobson Road. Located south of the 202 Red Mountain 
Freeway and east of Dobson Road. Council Use Permit. This request will allow a 
commercial recreation/entertainment land use within a C-2 zoning district. Daniel Lupien, 
Kimco Riverview, owner; Adam Baugh, Withey Morris, PLC, applicant. 

P&Z Recommendation: Approval with conditions. (Vote 7-0) 

*5b. 	 Z10-24 (District 6) 1454 South Crismon Road. Located north of the Superstition Freeway 
on the west side of the Crismon Road (39+/- acres). Rezone from R-43 to C-1 PAD and 
PEP with a Council Use Permit and Site Plan Review; also consider the Preliminary Plat 
for Sole at Superstition. This request will allow for a high density, mixed-use business 
park development with ancillary retail uses exceeding the amount allowed in the PEP 
zoning district. Crismon Superstition Partners, owner; Rob LaGrone, Sun West 
Properties, applicant (PLN201 0-00231). 

P & Z Recommendation: Approval with conditions. (Vote: 7-0) 

6. 	 Discuss, receive public comment. and take action on the ordinances introduced at a prior Council 
meeting. 

*6a. 	 Amending Title 1 of the Mesa City Code to add Chapter 32 titled Collection of Delinquent 
Amounts Owed to the City. This ordinance will establish a Citywide collection policy 
Ordinance No. 5005 

Items not on the Consent Agenda 

6. 	 Discuss, receive public comment. and take action on an ordinance introduced at a prior Council 
meeting. 

6b. 	 Z10-20 (District 5) 3009 East Lehi Road. Located north of McDowell Road and east of 
Gilbert Road (283+/- acres). Modification of the existing PAD Overlay and Site Plan 
Review. This request will facilitate the development of a residential master planned 
community. (PLN2010-00168) W. Thomas Hickcox, owner; Greg Davis, applicant 
Ordinance No. 5006. 

http:232,359.75
http:21,123.61
http:211,236.14


Regular Council Meeting 
October 4, 2010 
Page 4 

P& Z Recommendation: Approval with conditions. (Vote 5 - 0, Boardmembers Carter 
and DiBella absent) 

Mayor Smith stated that Planning Director John Wesley would provide an overview of the project. 

Mr. Wesley explained that this was a request to modify an existing Planned Area Development 
(PAD) that was originally approved in December of 2006. He advised that 273 of the 283 acres 
are proposed for residential development. Mr. Wesley said that in the intervening years, the 
applicant has identified several modifications that he would like to incorporate into the 
development, one of which is to amend the side yard setbacks. He stated that the existing side 
yard setback requirements are a minimum of five feet on one side and ten feet on the other side. 
Mr. Wesley reported that the applicant is requesting a minimum of five feet on one side and a 
total minimum setback of fifteen feet, which would allow the flexibility to have setbacks such as 
six on one side and nine feet on the other or seven on one side and eight feet on the other. 

Mr. Wesley reported that the applicant is also requesting an exception to the requirement that the 
ten-foot side yard be clear of obstructions. He advised that the phasing of the plan is proposed to 
be modified, the development is now proposed to be gated, and the church originally planned in 
the development will not be constructed. Mr. Wesley said that in Phases 4 and 6c, the applicant 
is proposing 55-foot wide lots rather than the original plan for 50-foot wide lots and in Phases 3 
and 6a, some changes in configuration are proposed to improve circulation and address 
drainage concerns. He said that the applicant's request comes forward to the Council with 
recommendations for approval by staff and the Planning and Zoning Board. 

Mayor Smith noted that the proposal before the Council modifies a plan that was previously 
approved four years ago. He advised that Charlie Caldwell of William Lyon Homes, Inc. and 
Greg Davis of IPLAN Consulting were present to answer any questions. 

Councilwoman Higgins said that this item was removed from the Consent agenda at her request. 
She expressed opposition to the proposal and noted that four years ago the applicant requested 
and received a higher density than the surrounding area, which entitled them to the reduced 
setback. Councilwoman Higgins stated the opinion that the applicant should have included these 
items in the original request. 

It was moved by Councilwoman Higgins, seconded by Councilmember Kavanaugh, that the 
applicant's request for modifications (Case Z1 0-20) be denied. 

Mayor Smith invited the applicant to come forward and address the concerns expressed by 
Councilwoman Higgins. 

Councilmember Somers requested that the applicant address each of the items and indicate the 
impact of the requested change on density. 

Mayor Smith suggested that the applicant also provide an overview of the original nature of the 
development and the impact of the proposed changes on the original plan. 

Mr. Davis stated that the character of the project remains unchanged. He noted that the original 
density called for approximately 1,000 units and that the proposed changes reduce the number 
of units to approximately 924. He advised that most of the proposed changes are the result of 
market conditions or based on experience gained on other projects. Mr. Davis said that the 



Regular Council Meeting 
October 4, 2010 
Page 5 

increased lot size to 55-feet wide from 50 feet will accommodate homes with greater square 
footage and more livable plans. He added that market conditions indicate a demand for a larger 
lot size with less density in this area of Mesa. Mr. Davis said that adding the gates would help to 
differentiate the project in the area. 

Responding to a question from Councilmember Somers, Mr. Davis stated that the streets remain 
private, as originally approved, and that the proposal simply adds gates to the development. 

Mr. Davis explained that Mesa Public Schools passed on the reserve site and a church declined 
to purchase the site allocated for them; therefore these sites were returned to the project for 
development, which resulted in modified layouts to adjust for transportation circulation and 
drainage issues. He said that the phasing plan changed to adjust for the modifications and the 
current economic conditions. 

Addressing the issue of setbacks, Mr. Davis advised that because other cities do not have similar 
types of requirements, they were unfamiliar with the issues. He noted that a five-foot setback 
area does not provide adequate space for air conditioning units and this is the area where 
bedrooms are typically located. He said that air conditioning units are usually placed in the ten
foot setback near the garage line. 

Mayor Smith noted that the ten-foot side of the property typically accommodates the garage and 
vehicular access. 

Mr. Davis stated that they were not sufficiently familiar with the Mesa Code in the original 
submission to request an exception to the 10-foot clear setback requirement. He explained that 
the request to deviate from the five and ten-foot setback requirement is to allow for the 18 inch 
overhang of the roof which would otherwise require non-combustible materials according to the 
International Fire Code (IFC). Mr. Davis noted that this part of the IFC is currently not enforced 
by the City of Mesa, but the developer would like to be proactive in the event that does become a 
future requirement. 

Councilwoman Higgins said she did not accept that explanation because the applicant was well
represented by a qualified zoning attorney. She explained that residents become upset when 
they have provided input to the original application process and then the developer comes back 
four years later with additional changes. 

Council member Finter asked if the issue regarding the fireproofing could be grandfathered in and 
he asked what type of citizen participation was generated for the modification request. 

Mr. Davis said he would let Mr. Wesley address the issue regarding the IFC. He said that two 
public meetings were held regarding the modification request; the first was attended by eight 
individuals and the second was attended by two property owners. He noted that the individual 
who was opposed to the original application also expressed opposition to the modification 
request for reasons similar to those outlined by Councilwoman Higgins. 

In response to a suggestion by Councilmember Finter, Mr. Davis agreed that including a 
stipulation in the ordinance that the IFC requirements regarding the five-foot setback would not 
apply to the project would satisfy the developer. 



Regular Council Meeting 
October 4, 2010 
Page 6 

Mr. Wesley explained that the City is unable to grandfather in exceptions to Building Code 
requirements and any project constructed after a change in the Code is subject to that Code. He 
also noted that Zoning regulations cannot be utilized to modify the Building Code. 

Mayor Smith clarified that the reason the City does not enforce that aspect of the IFC is that the 
City has not yet adopted that portion of the IFC requirements that relate to the setbacks. 

City Manager Christopher Brady noted that if the construction permit is pulled prior to the 
adoption of the IFC requirements, the requirements would not apply. 

Mayor Smith stated that there are many reasons other than the IFC for which the applicant is 
requesting a modification to the setback requirements. 

Councilmember Somers said that he understood the applicant's reasoning for placing air 
conditioning units near the garage. 

Responding to a question from Councilmember Somers, Mr. Wesley advised that staff does not 
object to the modification to the ten-foot setback. He noted that similar modifications have been 
approved for the Mountain Bridge and Las Send as developments. 

Vice Mayor Jones stated that the purchaser of the home would decide if there was adequate 
space in the setbacks to meet their needs. He said that as long as safety was not a factor, he did 
not have a problem approving the request. 

Councilwoman Higgins stated the opinion that density has not changed, and she further stated 
the opinion that there was no reason for the Council to approve the changes. 

Discussion ensued relative to the fact that the original plan was approved for 971 units if the 
church and school sites were not utilized; and that the current proposal calls for 928 units, which 
is a reduction of 43 units. 

Mayor Smith noted that gating a community of this size could pose problems, but he stated the 
opinion that the modifications proposed by the applicant do not change the nature, the quality or 
the standards of the community. 

Councilmember Finter expressed concern that this change could be approved with the 
Councilmember representing this area in opposition to the changes. He hoped that there was an 
opportunity for compromise. 

Mayor Smith said he was very familiar with the property and although he opposed the original 
proposal, a previous Council did approve the plan. He added that the proposed modifications do 
not appear to make substantial changes to the original approved plan, and he stated the opinion 
that it was inappropriate for this Council to retry the original case. 

Councilmember Richins said that the Council is likely to consider this case again in the future, 
and he expressed support for providing the applicant with flexibility. 



Regular Council Meeting 
October 4, 2010 
Page 7 

Mayor Smith called for the vote. 


Upon tabulation of votes, it showed: 


AYES Finter-Higgins-Kavanaugh 

NAYS- Jones-Richins-Smith-Somers 


Mayor Smith declared the motion failed by a majority vote. 


It was moved by Vice Mayor Jones, seconded by Councilmember Richins, that Ordinance No. 

5006 be adopted. 


Councilmember Finter said he hoped that the item would be continued, and he added that he 
would not support the motion. 

Mayor Smith expressed the hope that the applicant could convince Councilwoman Higgins that 
the development will provide a benefit to the community. He requested that the developer build 
homes that are comparable to the quality homes constructed by their firm in other communities, 
and he reminded the applicant that this property is a gateway to the City of Mesa. 

Councilmember Somers said he hoped that the technical changes would result in a higher quality 
community. 

Councilwoman Higgins emphasized that the City of Mesa expects major home builders to 
construct high quality developments. She said that this builder develops high-quality projects in 
other communities, and she reiterated the opinion that the developer should have been 
knowledgeable regarding the zoning issues. 

Mayor Smith called for the vote. 


Upon tabulation of votes, it showed: 


AYES Jones-Richins-Smith-Somers 

NAYS- Finter-Higgins-Kavanaugh 


Mayor Smith declared the motion carried by a majority vote and Ordinance No. 5006 adopted. 


7. 	 Items from citizens present. 

There were no items from citizens present. 



Regular Council Meeting 
October 4, 2010 
Page 8 

10. Adjournment. 

Without objection, the meeting adjourned at 6:32 p.m. 

scon SMITH, MAYOR 
ArrEST: 

LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting of the City Council of Mesa, Arizona, held on the 4th day of October 2010. I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 

baa 


